

Colorado Regional Service Committee of Narcotics Anonymous  
Minutes of Regional Assembly, Boulder, CO  
May 16, 2008

**ANNOUNCEMENTS:**

1. OTW is having a Barn Dance CRCNA fund raiser on June 30<sup>th</sup> near Ft. Collins. Information and flyers are on the web at <http://www.nacolorado.org/crcna/>
2. CRCNA Early Bird registration, at the very low price of \$15.00, ends on June 25<sup>th</sup>. Meals are selling quickly. The breakfast will be held in a room with a beautiful setting and incredible mountain view.
3. **Next** CRSC meeting will be at 1212 Mariposa, Denver on Sunday, July 19.

**NOTE: new location!**

**ACTION ITEMS:**

1. RDA to send Web Servant the PowerPoint presentation to be posted on the web site.

**OPEN W/ SERVICE PRAYER – at 11:05 a.m.**

**ROLL CALL:**

Chair (Denise W) - present  
Vice Chair/Budget (Carlos G) - present  
Treasurer (Don T) – present  
Secretary (Teresa K) - present  
RD (Brenda E) - present  
RDA (Chuck C) – present  
Web Servant (Don T) - present  
CRCNA Chair (Tina W.) - present  
CRCNA Vice Chair (Tiffany S.) - present  
CRCNA Treasurer (Joyce) - present  
PI (Tawni C) – present  
H&I (Terry C) - present  
Incorporation Ad Hoc (Chuck C.) present  
PR Ad Hoc (Linda L.) absent with notice  
RCM Boulder (August) – present  
Bringing Freedom East (Rich, Jared) – absent with notice  
RCM Mile High (Joann, Brian) - present  
RCM Mountain High (Reece) – absent with notice  
RCM Mountains West – absent  
RCM Off The Wall (Newt, Shawn) – present  
RCM Pikes Peak (Steven and Kathleen) – present  
RCM Serenity Unlimited (Michael) – sent proxy vote  
RCM Southern – absent  
See attach list of GSRs present:  
    Boulder area, 7 GSR's  
    MHA, 6 GSR's  
    OTW, 5 GSR's  
    PPA, 2GSR's, 1 GSRA

**Approved minutes for March, 2009**

Colorado Regional Service Committee of Narcotics Anonymous  
 Minutes of Regional Assembly, Boulder, CO  
 May 16, 2008

**REPORTS:** Because this is an Assembly not all CRSC position have reports.

**REPORT FROM TREASURER: by Don T**

**CRSCNA TREASURER'S REPORT --- May 16, 2009**

**CRSCNA TREASURER'S REPORT**

**March 22, 2009 to May 15, 2009**

	<b><u>CURRENT REPORT PERIOD</u></b>	<b><u>CURRENT YEAR TO DATE (2009)</u></b>
<b>OPENING BALANCE - Jan 1, 2009</b>		<b>\$1,497.48</b>
<b>OPENING BALANCE - May 15, 2009</b>	<b>\$5,098.00</b>	
*****		
<b>INCOME:</b>		
<b>Area Donations</b>	-	
Boulder Area	\$793.11	\$793.11
Bringing Freedom East	\$0.00	\$5.00
Mile High Area	\$534.40	\$534.40
Mountain High Area	\$0.00	\$0.00
Mountains West Area	\$0.00	\$0.00
Off The Wall Area	\$0.00	\$500.00
Pikes Peak Area	\$200.00	\$400.00
Serenity Unlimited Area	\$10.00	\$10.00
Southern Area	\$0.00	\$0.00
<b>Group Donations</b>		
Crestone Group	\$0.00	\$40.00
Flattop Addicts Group	\$0.00	\$0.00
Golden Group	\$0.00	\$26.00
Keep It Serenely Simple Group	\$0.00	\$0.00
Northside Young in Recovery Group	\$0.00	\$0.00
True Blue Group	\$74.00	\$132.00
Together We Can	\$0.00	\$0.00
Clean And Serene	\$0.00	\$0.00
Hayden Group	\$0.00	\$0.00
Vail Valley Group	\$0.00	\$75.00
Surrender and Recovery Group	\$0.00	\$0.00
<b>Other Income</b>	-	
	<b>\$0.00</b>	<b>\$10,727.38</b>

Colorado Regional Service Committee of Narcotics Anonymous  
 Minutes of Regional Assembly, Boulder, CO  
 May 16, 2008

**TOTAL INCOME** **\$1,611.51** **\$13,242.89**

**EXPENDITURES:**

		<u>Check #</u>	
Prior Report Period YTD Expenditures	XXXX		<b>\$8,030.86</b>
Donut Hole	\$50.00	336	\$50.00
St Andrews (Deposit)	\$200.00	337	\$200.00
St Andrews Facility Rent	\$150.00	338	\$150.00
Leslie Spires	\$275.51	339	\$275.51
Alan Holub	\$100.00	340	\$100.00
NAWS	\$100.00	341	\$100.00
			\$0.00
			\$0.00
			\$0.00

**TOTAL EXPENDITURES** **\$875.51** **\$8,906.37**

\*\*\*\*\*

**(NET) ENDING BALANCE -**  
**March 22, 2009** **\$5,834.00** **\$5,834.00**

**OPENING BALANCE - May**  
**15, 2009** **\$5,834.00** **\$5,834.00**

\*\*\*\*\*

**BANK ACCOUNT-CHECKBOOK RECONCILIATION as of May 15, 2009** **-**

**Latest Bank Statement Date -**  
**April 30, 2009**

**Balance Shown on Latest Bank Statement:** **\$9,095.43**

**Adjustments to Bank Statement**  
**-** **Net Adjustment: (\$3,261.43)**

**Outstanding Deposits:** **\$388.57** **Adjusted Bank Balance:** **\$5,834.00**

**Outstanding Checks & Charges:** **\$3,650.00** **Checkbook Balance:** **\$5,834.00**

**Net Adjustment:** **(\$3,261.43)** **VARIANCE:** **\$0.00**

Since the close of the last CRSCNA meeting on March 22, 2008, donations have been received from one Group (True Blue) for \$74 and one Area (BASC) for 793.11 totaling 867.11. All of the donations received during the current report period are listed on the previous page.

There have been no expenditures, resulting in an opening balance of: \$5834.00

The Regional checkbook and the latest US Bank statement have been reconciled with one deposit and four checks outstanding and no variance.

In Loving Service,

Colorado Regional Service Committee of Narcotics Anonymous  
Minutes of Regional Assembly, Boulder, CO  
May 16, 2008

Don T – CRSCNA Treasurer

**REPORT FROM WEB SERVANT: by Don T**

**Web Servant Report for May Regional Assembly**

**Since March**

- Regional Meeting list last updated: **May 16, 2009**
- Website Stats

<b>Month</b>	<b>Unique Visitors</b>	<b>Number of Visits</b>
January 2008	1871	3374
February 2008	1855	3227
March 2008	2372	3983
April 2008	2142	3321
May 2008	1865	2942
June 2008	2050	3151
July 2008	2004	3519
August 2008	1882	3571
September 2008	1378	2404
October 2008	2180	3861
November 2008	2012	3462
December 2008	1994	3476
January 2009	2265	3768
February 2009	2119	3624
March 2009	2548	4062
April 2009	2425	3822
May 2009 (to date)	1183	1811
Daily Averages 05/2009	78.87	120.73

Submitted in Loving Service,  
Don T

**REPORT FROM RD/RDA: by Brenda and Chuck**

A presentation was given and an interactive workshop done regarding communication within the service structure, which was done at the World workshops the RD and RDA attended in March. The PowerPoint presentation is available on the Colorado NA web page: <http://www.nacolorado.org/region/Regionallassembly041809.pdf>

The CRSC secretary failed to take notes during the workshop (ironic really); fortunately, the RD has sent a summary of the presentation/workshops:

Colorado Regional Service Committee of Narcotics Anonymous  
Minutes of Regional Assembly, Boulder, CO  
May 16, 2008

REGIONAL ASSEMBLY  
BOULDER, COLORADO  
RD/RDA PRESENTATION

Results from presentation:

**Group --- Area/Region**

Working well:

Groups support financially  
Meeting lists

Not working well:

Do not always financially support fully  
Not all GSRs attend Regional Assemblies  
Not all GSRs take Area announcements to groups

Solutions:

Area Outreach  
Clear direction from Groups to Areas  
Discuss financial issues in business meetings  
Raise financial awareness – where money is spent  
Encourage partnership

Communication:

Have members know what issues to take to groups

**Area --- Region**

Working well:

Financial support  
Communication between service bodies

Not working well:

Lack of communication at times between service bodies  
Warm-body syndrome for filling service positions

Solutions:

More regional announcements  
More event flyers

Colorado Regional Service Committee of Narcotics Anonymous  
Minutes of Regional Assembly, Boulder, CO  
May 16, 2008

Vice positions in service – train for position – mentoring

Communication Needs:

Region to Area and vice versa

**Region --- NAWS:**

Working well:

Communication between service bodies  
CAR – Conference Agenda Report information

Not working well:

No meetings on line  
NAWS to Groups and members sometimes lacks

Solutions:

Provide on line meetings  
RD/RDA visit Areas  
Communication more by World Service bulletins

**NAWS --- Groups:**

Working well:

Purchase literature directly  
Good support by NAWS  
NA Way & other periodicals helpful  
Service guides good  
Input both ways

Not working well:

Fund flow is poor from groups to NAWS  
Meeting list updates by NAWS for the groups

Solutions:

Fund flow education  
Meeting list updates in a timely manner

Colorado Regional Service Committee of Narcotics Anonymous  
Minutes of Regional Assembly, Boulder, CO  
May 16, 2008

**Communication in NA Services:**

Working well:

Written/oral reports  
Sponsorship reports  
Website/email responses

Not working well:

Through the structure – from NAWS up to Groups  
Increase frequency in communication – helps groups  
Encourage service work to bring in new addicts  
Training – learn service positions

**REPORT FROM CRCNA XXII CHAIR REPORT: by Tina**

Greetings from the CRCNA crew we are moving right along on schedule and want to say thanks to the region for your support at the Breakfast. Every sub-committee is up and running holding monthly meetings.

1. Program meets June 6 ,4pm at Panera Bread Constitution & Powers BLVD Colorado Springs Colorado Contact Jayme 719-339-6801
2. Registration meets June 19 at the Area Service Office 228 auburn St Colorado Springs contact Maggie for information 719-661-7893
3. Merchandise meets June 14, 4pm contact Anna 303-263-8584
4. H & I meets May 28 7pm W 88<sup>th</sup> Ave & Sheridan (Perkins) Contact Valery303-584-7682
5. Print & display will meet June 12 Village Inn at Alameda & Wadsworth call Teresa 303-522-1252
6. Hotel & Hospitality will meet May 31 and June 14 contact Kevin 719-205-0368
7. F & E contact Dave W for date & time 970-988-1921

We have available for the region today CRCNA timeline, budget, and program workshop titles. I have turned this in to Denise for review or approval. The online registrations site is working great, so please check it out.

Early bird registration is only 15 dollars up until June 25, 15 dollars for preregistration T-shirt only available until June 25 so get them while you can. Coffee mugs will be sold longer until Sept 21 for \$15.00. We are dedicated to raising money and traveling all over to make this possible. The merchandise chair is attending the convention in WY. To hand deliver information and sell merchandise from CRCNA. Registration will be at the picnic in Denver Ain't Dead Yet May 25.

I brought flyers for the upcoming event for May 30 the Barn Dance & Pig Roast thanks Off the Wall for arranging for this to happen I hope to see you there. As soon as event

Colorado Regional Service Committee of Narcotics Anonymous  
Minutes of Regional Assembly, Boulder, CO  
May 16, 2008

flyers are approved by the committee I will email blast them out and have them posted on the regional website and CRCNA website.

The Crown Plaza is taking reservations for the hotel 1-800-981-4012 remember to mention CRCNA XXIII so you will be in the room block and gets the special rate. Don't procrastinate book your rooms

The meals are:

1. Chicken Cordon Bleu wild rice & ginger carrots
2. Sirloin Steak Anna potatoes & vegetable medley
3. Pesto Pasta Primavera with roasted vegetables

Buy them now because they are selling fast.

Breakfast will be buffet style but what I want to say is buy this meal ticket to enjoy the outstanding view from the Sunday morning hotel ballroom you will enjoy the view of the mountains.

The committee discussed at our last meeting about the fact that CRCNA will need to have its own software and computer to store CRCNA business on in the future. We have the QuickBooks but the donated laptop has not been working this year. The committee wanted me to bring it up so that this body was aware we understand how important keeping track of business is and handing things over for the next year's committee. Maybe you could give us some feedback about what the possibilities could be?

Registrations are available to for you to take back to the area also if you have a place that does not have web please let me know so that we can get as much information out to them by mail. We have merchandise for sale today and the best part we have ice cream sundaes to serve or root beer floats. This ice cream treat is sponsored by CRCNA thanks again for your support.

Thrilled to be of service Love Tina 719-205-2258

I'm always available please feel free to contact me.

**Question and discussion:**

- An Area requested that CRCNA get last year's information removed from the website and this year's information posted as quickly as possible
- CRCNA is working on this and it dovetails into the earlier stated problem of having web software available to CRCNA servants.

**REPORT OF THE INCORPORATION AD HOC: presentation by Chuck**

Chuck gave a presentation on the current status of the incorporation. The PowerPoint should be available on the web at

<http://www.nacolorado.org/region/RegionalassemblyIncAdHoc.pdf>

**Question and discussion:**

- The Board will be the authors of the bylaws and can change them if needed.
- We do not need to be incorporated to get insurance. These two things are independent and insurance can be worked out later, after we are incorporated.



Colorado Regional Service Committee of Narcotics Anonymous  
Minutes of Regional Assembly, Boulder, CO  
May 16, 2008

- As long as CRCNA stays below \$100,000 in revenue, we can file the “EZ” forms and the IRS does not seem too concerned with a corporation that falls within this income range.
- This created some concern that we were trying to “pull off” something. It was noted that the corporation intends to stay above board, follow the tax laws and act responsibly.
- An important lesson learned from the past was that we must continue to file the correct paperwork to make sure that the corporation does stay within the law.
- If/when CRCNA passes \$100,000 in revenue; we will have to file more difficult and expensive tax forms. Does anyone know the growth rate of CRCNA?
- It is currently around \$50,000 in revenue. Clarified that is \$50,000 in revenue, not profit.
- The additional costs include an audit that costs approximately \$3,000.
- Need to find out if revenues from other activities that may be covered by insurance will be counted into the CRCNA revenues.
- There was concern expressed that this was a violation of the 9<sup>th</sup> tradition.
- Many conventions, including WCNA, are incorporated--it is not a tradition violation.
- If we pass the \$100,000 then the additional expenses will have to be incorporated into the expense of the convention.
- It is currently set up for people to serve in one and two-year terms with rotation that ensures there will always be people with experience on the Board.
- It was verified that incorporating will not hamper the donations of profits to other NA bodies.

**REPORT OF THE PR AD HOC: read by Brenda**  
**RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS**

**ASKED OF THE PR ADHOC COMMITTEE BASED ON CURRENT CRSC**  
**GUIDELINES**  
**AND THE TWELVE CONCEPTS OF SERVICE**  
**FROM NAWS**

- ◆ Chairs of the Subcommittees (PI, H&I, Web, etc.) will be elected by the CRSC as they are now. The PR Coordinator will also be elected by the CRSC.
- ◆ There will be 4 votes at each CRSC (PI, H&I, Web, and PR) as there are now according to the CRSC Guidelines.
- ◆ Within the PR Committee meetings, all Subcommittees (PI, H&I, Web, etc.)

Colorado Regional Service Committee of Narcotics Anonymous  
Minutes of Regional Assembly, Boulder, CO  
May 16, 2008

will have a vote.

- ◆ The PR Coordinator will attend a Subcommittee meeting if requested, needed or desired. Each Subcommittee is to keep records of their meetings and to submit those minutes to the PR Chair after each meeting occurs. In addition, copies of these minutes will be at the PR meetings, in the Subcommittee Chair's report to PR, and made available at each CRSC by the PR Coordinator.
- ◆ The functions of the PR Coordinator are (but not limited to) to coordinating the functions and efforts of the PR Committee, to assist/coordinate efforts of the various Subcommittees, to be the sole point of accountability to the CRSC in PR matters and to maintain archives and data such that any CRSC member may have access to this data with CRSC Administrative Committee knowledge/approval.
- ◆ PR Committee Guidelines will be developed and presented to the CRSC for Assembly Approval in 2010.

**\*\*\* THE INFORMATION ABOVE ARE NOT GUIDELINES \*\*\***

**Question and discussion:**

- The proposed PR structure only affects the Region; Areas use whatever structure they deem appropriate.
- All involved subcommittees will use a single combined budget; therefore only one budget will be requested from Region.
- The current PI chair noted that the structure has been very helpful to PI. There has been better coordination of services and no disconnects in service.
- The current H&I chair also noted that the structure has been very helpful for the H&I subcommittee. It has helped with the learning curve at the start of her commitment and continues to keep them connected to all services.
- How does outreach fit in? It is currently a resource duty of the RDA. It is anticipated that will change significantly over the next year as it becomes its own subcommittee.
- Each subcommittee will continue to operate independently.
- The intent is that they operate for the next year and then develop the guidelines.

**Elections:**

Treasurer: Don T elected for a second term

Secretary: Teresa K elected for a second term

PI: Tawni elected for the first full term

H&I: Terry C elected for a second term

**Question and discussion:**

Colorado Regional Service Committee of Narcotics Anonymous  
Minutes of Regional Assembly, Boulder, CO  
May 16, 2008

- Each person was asked what they planned to do to avoid being elected for a third term, 4<sup>th</sup> concept, rotation of positions.
- Actively recruit a replacement.
- Involve sponsees--teach them the value of service and train them.
- Find a vice chair early on so they are comfortable and experienced with the tasks.
- Quit--somebody will always step up.

**Proposal #1: approved, 1 stand aside**

To separate the regional assemblies to occur in April and September

**Intent:** For our region to function in a timely manner without having to wait until April.

**Maker:** Karen

**Second:** Brian S.

**Question and discussion:**

Needed to clarify the effect this would have on CRCNA bids. It would not affect the bids since they can be submitted at the July CRSC meeting and it is not mandatory that bids be submitted at assemblies

**Proposal #2: approved, 6 stand asides**

To amend the CRSCNA guidelines changing the Web Resource position into a member of the Administrative Committee, with the title Web Servant.

**Intent:** To make the CRSC guidelines, more accurately reflect the scope and nature of this trusted servant position, as these were written as this position was still new. Over time, the position has evolved to such a place where it does need to be an elected, rather than appointed, position at the CRSC.

**Specifically:**

Article 5: Administrative Committee - Qualifications, Duties, Responsibilities

**Add:** Section G: Web Servant

1. Suggested clean time: 3 years

**Move:** Article 6 Section C to Article 5 Section G

**Maker:** Don T.

**Date:** 11/16/2008

**Question and discussion:**

- Shouldn't Web be under the PR umbrella?
- It probably will be if and when PR is formed.
- The advantage to doing this now is that the Web Servant should be voted on by all, not appointed.
- Isn't this more of a subcommittee than an administrative position?
- It was simpler to move a block of current guidelines to admin rather than create a whole subcommittee when it is likely to be changed next year with the PR changes.

Colorado Regional Service Committee of Narcotics Anonymous  
**Minutes of Regional Assembly, Boulder, CO**  
May 16, 2008

**Proposal #3: approved, 1 stand aside**

To form the Colorado Narcotics Anonymous Convention Corporation. The corporation will handle legal, financial, contractual, insurance and indemnification for the Colorado Regional Convention. The corporation shall be a Colorado non-profit corporation and will file a tax-exempt request with the government via IRS Form 1023

Cost: State corporation filing (online) \$50.00

Filing IRS form 1023 \$750.00

Possible legal fees (to help with IRS form) \$300.00

**Intent:** To provide protection for the members of the Colorado Regional Service Committee, specifically the chair who currently signs the CRCNA hotel contract per the CRSCNA guidelines.

**Maker:** Chuck

**Question and discussion:**

- It seems like a 9<sup>th</sup> tradition violation.

**OPEN DISCUSSION:**

- (1) Clean time requirements are too restrictive, isn't willingness and knowledge as important.
  - There are positions that require trust and responsibility, such as treasurer.
  - They are only suggestions that can be waived if warranted.
  - Steps and traditions require practice; time is a useful measure.
  - Fourth concept implies a spiritual awakening and that requires time and work.
  - Time does not equate to recovery, there have been those who were in over their heads even with the suggested clean time.
  - An "old timer" noted his experience has been that clean time may not be the best measure. Perhaps demonstrated completion of other service work is a better measure. The assumption is that you should be looking at the work not the title.
  - In the early days, when nobody had a lot of clean time, we did not just railroad people in then leave them floundering. We railroaded them in and helped them adjust.
  - It may not be the best measure, but how else can we determine a person's abilities. It is just one way to measure commitment to recovery.
  - It also helps protect newer people. It has happened that a newcomer gets in over their head and then leaves the program out of embarrassment or shame.
  - Service work, like the steps, is meant to be done in order. By the time you have successfully completed positions as greeter, meeting secretary, and GSR you have the clean time requirements for other positions.
- (2) Should we put some limit on the amount of time a person can go into the same H&I facility.
  - Several people have been going into a facility for many years and rarely do they see the same people. The turnover within the facility is usually quick.

Colorado Regional Service Committee of Narcotics Anonymous  
Minutes of Regional Assembly, Boulder, CO  
May 16, 2008

- Going in as pairs is a sufficient guard against burnout slipping into someone's message.
  - There is a practical consideration that we do not have the resources to turn away volunteers.
  - We should consider our ability to meet an H&I demand before committing to it. If we do not have the people, we should not accept the request.
  - This seems a classic case of us trying to legislate behavior through guidelines instead of directly confronting an individual who needs to be held responsible for their behavior. If there is someone doing an H&I meeting who has been there too long to be effective, we need to speak to that individual, not write a guideline.
- (3) There is a discrepancy between the CRSC and CRCNA guidelines in regards to the CRCNA secretary's obligation to attend CRSC meetings.

**CLOSING TREASURER REPORT:**

Start	\$ 5834
in	\$ 700
out	\$ 100
total	\$6434
<b>DONATION TO WORLD</b>	<b>\$1434</b>

**DECISIONS MADE:**

- Have the Assemblies evenly spaces each year in April and September.
- Move the Web Servant from a resource to an Administration position.
- Incorporate CRCNA.

**The following reports were submitted but not read at the Assembly:**

**H&I REPORT: by Terry**

**CRSCNA H&I SUBCOMMITTEE REPORT  
REGIONAL ASSEMBLY May 16, 2009**

First of all I would like to start out by saying it has been an honor to be the H&I Regional Chair over this past year. This is the first time I have worked on a regional level and it is very fascinating and awesome to watch God work through our group conscience. Though we have many personalities and differences of opinions we always seem to come together for our primary purpose to carry the NA message. It has been an amazing journey for me so far.

I have had the privilege of being apart of the PR ad-hoc subcommittee and I am very excited to be on their team. The H&I Subcommittee are very much in favor of the proposal that will eventually make PR a standing subcommittee. The combined efforts

Colorado Regional Service Committee of Narcotics Anonymous  
**Minutes of Regional Assembly, Boulder, CO**  
May 16, 2008

of all subcommittees, blanketed under the umbrella of PR are a win- win for all of us. We had a meeting over the internet on Mother's Day and my hat goes off to Don for all his time in making this possible. It is amazing to be part of a team that goes above and beyond the call of duty.

The H&I Subcommittee met on April 11<sup>th</sup> with the attendance of the following H&I chairs- Valery from Mile High Area, Todd from Boulder and Dawn from Off The Wall. We had a very productive meeting and I am so grateful to Dawn for stepping up as our new secretary- we now officially have minutes!!!! We have been working on developing an H&I book that consists of a basic text, readings, literature, etc. to be sent into prisons in our remote areas. We are also focusing on obtaining the clearance to carry our message into Canon City. So if you are here today and can help with that undertaking please see me after the meeting. We also have a need for woman in the Boulder area to go into Boulder and Adams County jails.

H&I have been contacted to set up contacts between NA and newcomers from treatment facilities. We have decided to create a 12<sup>th</sup> Step List of volunteers who would be willing to take a newcomer to a meeting throughout our region. Since this involves giving out your personal phone number and either meeting a newcomer at the meeting or taking another addict to pick them up and drive them, we are asking for a year clean time requirement of at least one of the addicts. There is such a need to carry the message of Narcotics Anonymous that no addict need die from the horrors of addiction. The newcomer is the most important person at any meeting so please let's all step up to this way of introducing our message. Again I am honored to be apart of the solution through the efforts of PR and the H&I Subcommittee.

**RCM REPORT OTW: by Newt**

Hi folks,

We have had some changes at our area. We have a new RCM1, Shawn H (welcome Shawn). Also our past RCM1, Karen C, was elected Vice Chair. Red B has been reelected to the treasurer's position. Our H&I Chair is Chriss H. Stephanie is our secretary. Our Literature Chair position is open at this time.

We had a large group in ft Collins lost their meeting place because some of the members failed to take care of their children. Fortunately, they found a new meeting place that is working well.

We have a \$500.00 donation to the Region. We have a new letter editor. Our newsletter is titled "Our Living Promise".

Please don't forget about the CRCNA XXIII Barn Dance and Luau in our area on May 30<sup>th</sup>. In our groups we have shred a lot about home group's importance and the importance of being a part of and supporting your home groups. This action in group conscience has brought a large amount of support and unity in our area.

**ILS, Newt**

**Off the Wall Area Regional Report**

**05/16/09**

Colorado Regional Service Committee of Narcotics Anonymous  
Minutes of Regional Assembly, Boulder, CO  
May 16, 2008

**-Meeting Changes**

- “Addicts Helping Addicts” have a new meeting on Monday nights. The location times are all the same.
- “Freedom Springs Group” is interested in an area sharing day. They want a day that local addicts could come learn about area and I was thinking region too. Maybe have a Regional rep come by too and discuss the Colorado service flow.
- “NA Nooner” will not be having a meeting Memorial Day.
- “When at the End of the Road” will be down to just noon meetings starting May 4<sup>th</sup>. They will be Monday through Friday at 1201 Riverside in Ft. Collins.
- “Make Your own Monday” has a time correction. The meeting starts at 7:00pm not 6:39pm.
- “Off the Wall Area” monthly service meetings were voted to be held in Loveland each month. We will no longer be rotating cities. They will now be in the Pulliam Building basement at 545 Cleveland Ave. Loveland, Co. at 9am.

**-Activities**

- Off the Wall Area is hosting the first CRCNA fundraiser in Ft. Collins. It will be a Barn Dance, Pig Roast and DJ Dance starting at 5pm on May 30<sup>th</sup>. The cost is \$7 for an individual or \$12 for a combo of two people. There will also be hay rides, a sponsor splash and a fireside meeting. Directions are on the back of the flyers. If you have any questions please call Dave W. at 970-988-1921.

**- Open Position**

- We currently have the position of Literature chair open. Mike M. has served as the Literature chair for a little over two years now and done a outstanding job. He resigned at the last area and we were unable to find a replacement. Karen our Vice Chair will be fulfilling the positions duties until such time as a replacement is found.

**- Other news to report**

- We have created an Ad hoc committee to revise our current guidelines. Progress has been made but we are not done yet.

**- Area Donation**

- We have a \$500 donation for Region.

Thanks for letting me be of service,  
Shawn H. - RCM 1 - “Off the Wall Area”

**RCM FROM SERENITY UNLIMITED: report by Michael**

Greetings to the Regional Assembly from Serenity Unlimited (SUANA),

I have been asked to attend our ASC meeting today to address issues for which my help is needed. With regard to the 4 Proposals presented to our groups for

Colorado Regional Service Committee of Narcotics Anonymous  
**Minutes of Regional Assembly, Boulder, CO**  
**May 16, 2008**

consideration, we wish to Stand Aside on the Proposal to place H&I, Web, & PR under the PI committee. We are in favor of the other 3 proposals. Please consider this memo as our Proxy if this is possible.

Call me if there are any questions.

Michael H. 970 250 9956